
 

Parkside  Station Approach  Burton Street  Melton Mowbray  Leicestershire  LE13 1GH 

01664 502502 * contactus@melton.gov.uk * www.melton.gov.uk * @MeltonBC 

 

 
 

Agenda 

 
 

 

 

Meeting name Meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee 

Date Tuesday, 28 September 2021 

Start time 6.30 pm 

Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 
Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire  LE13 1GH 

Other information This meeting is open to the public 
 

Members of the Audit and Standards Committee are invited to the above 
meeting to consider the following items of business. 
 
Edd de Coverly 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership 
 
Councillors R. Child (Chair) R. Smith (Vice-Chair) 
 T. Bains P. Chandler 
 P. Cumbers M. Glancy 
 A. Hewson J. Illingworth 
 P. Posnett MBE D. Pritchett 
 
 
Quorum:  5 Councillors 
 
 

Meeting enquiries Democratic Services 

Email democracy@melton.gov.uk 

Agenda despatched Monday, 20 September 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

No. Item 
 

Page No. 

 YOUTUBE 
Public Access: 
The meeting will be available to view here 
 

 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   MINUTES 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2021. 
 

1 - 8 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Members to declare any interest as appropriate, in respect of items 
to be considered at this meeting. 
 

9 - 10 

4.   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
The Head of Internal Audit to submit a report to update Members on 
the progress made in delivering the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan and 
key findings arising from audit assignments completed. 
 

11 - 30 

5.   EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL LETTER 2019/20 
Ernst Young, the External Auditor, to provide a high level summary 
of the results of the 2019/20 audit work undertaken at Melton 
Borough Council. 
 

31 - 56 

6.   RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2021 
The Director for Corporate Services to submit a report updating 
Members on risk management arrangements and outlining the 
current significant risks which have been captured on the recent 
review of the Council’s Strategic Risk Register by the Senior 
Leadership Team. 
 

57 - 70 

7.   URGENT BUSINESS 
To consider any other items that the Chair considers urgent. 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NtKmPUuT3vI


1 Audit and Standards Committee : 270721 

 

 

 

 

Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

Present: 

 

Chair Councillor R. Child (Chair)  

 

Councillors R. Smith (Vice-Chair) P. Cumbers 

 M. Glancy A. Hewson 

 J. Illingworth P. Posnett MBE 

 D. Pritchett  

 

 

Officers Director for Corporate Services (Chief Finance Officer) 

 Assistant Director for Governance & Democracy (Monitoring Officer) 

 Head of Internal Audit 

 Senior Democratic Services & Scrutiny Officer 

 Democratic Services Officer (CR) 

 

  

 

Meeting name Audit and Standards Committee 

Date Tuesday, 27 July 2021 

Start time 6.30 pm 

Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 

Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire  LE13 1GH 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2 Audit and Standards Committee : 270721 

 

 

Minute 

No. 

 

Minute 

80 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Chandler.  Councillor Bains 

was not present at the meeting. 

 

81 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 9 March 2021 were confirmed and 

authorised to be signed by the Chair. 

 

82 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

 

83 CIPFA Financial Management Code 

Dawn Garton, Director for Corporate Services introduced the report, the purpose of 

which was to inform Members of key requirements and the Council’s compliance 

with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Financial 

Management Code for 2021/22. 

 

Mrs. Garton advised that she had undertaken an initial assessment against the 

Code, which contained minimum standards for councils to meet statutory 

responsibilities (obligatory from 1 April 2020), while awaiting further guidance from 

CIPFA and before an Internal Audit review was undertaken.  The review (before 

Members) was requested as a consultancy review to support the self-assessment 

and act as independent verification.  Whilst the audit confirmed that the Council 

was compliant in all areas of the Code, there were areas where compliance could 

be improved (by moving from either satisfactory to good or from good to 

substantial).  As a consultancy review, the audit was not designed to provide 

assurance over the adequacy of controls. 

 

Mrs. Garton highlighted the Action Plan (at Appendix A of the report), which 

detailed assurances for the standards in the Code.  This would help improve 

compliance to add value.  Following concerns over the impact of Covid-19 on 

governance, there was a requirement that the Annual Governance Statement 

(AGS) for 2020/21 include a conclusion on assessment of compliance with the 

principles of the Code.  The draft AGS would be presented later at this meeting and 

included the outcome of the assessment before Members. 

 

During discussion the following points were noted: 

 

• The Council was on target to meet the delivery dates stated within the Action 

Plan. 

• The Council had complied with the requirements of the Code but would work 

on improvements where moving from either satisfactory to good or from 

good to substantial would add value (and required resources were 

available). 

Page 2



3 Audit and Standards Committee : 270721 

 

• It was commented that with regard to budget monitoring, there was 

consistently a number of high budget variations.  This needed to be 

managed effectively and it was suggested that rather than building in a 

contingency for this, other options could be considered. 

• The final outturn and budget variations being made a standard agenda item 

at all Directorate Management Team meetings by 31 July (as noted on the 

Action Plan) was vital. 

• The debt management reports were monitored by the Senior Leadership 

Team and with debt amounting to £1.3 million, regular review was essential. 

 
Audit and Standards Committee  

 

1) NOTED the outcome of the Internal Audit review of the Council’s 
      compliance with the CIPFA Financial Management code; 

 

2) APPROVED the action plan 
 

84 Counter Fraud Update Report 

Rachel Ashley-Caunt, Head of Internal Audit introduced the report, the purpose of 

which was to provide an update on counter fraud activity at the Council and a log of 

reports of attempted or alleged fraud against the Council during the financial year 

2020/21. 

 

Ms. Ashley-Caunt highlighted that a 6 monthly update on counter fraud activity and 

an end of year fraud log was provided to the Committee, detailing any frauds 

reported or investigated during the year (and their outcomes).  Additionally, a self-

assessment had been undertaken against the latest Fighting Fraud and Corruption 

Locally guidance and a copy of the assessment against the guidance criteria was 

detailed at Table 1 of Appendix A of the report.  Action was required in relation to 

Contractors and third parties signing up to the Whistleblowing Policy and Table 2 

detailed the progress made on this action (completed January 2021). 

 

Ms. Ashley-Caunt highlighted the key actions undertaken by the Council during the 

year: 

 

• Maintaining the Fraud Risk Register, as a ‘living document’, which informed 
the work of Internal Audit 

• Promoting awareness of fraud risks and alerts for key risk areas to ensure 
staff know the correct action to take. 

• Formal staff briefings 

• Updated the Fraud Response Plan on some key areas of good practice. 

• Supported the Council’s award of business grants during the pandemic.  
This had been a high risk item on the Fraud Risk Register nationally and 
had been subject to its own fraud risk assessments.  Internal Audit had 
provided alerts and shared intelligence on business grants fraud cases at 
other councils to help this Council identify attempts to defraud. 

 

During discussion the following points were noted: 

 

Page 3



4 Audit and Standards Committee : 270721 

 

• The Fraud Awareness training referred to at paragraph 5.1(b) of the report 
was mandatory (from April 2021).  Completion of the training would be 
monitored by the Human Resources Team and reported to the Senior 
Leadership Team. 

• Internal Audit had reviewed a number of applications for business grants to 
determine if there was a need to refer them to relevant government 
department.  There had been 1 suspected fraudulent application to this 
Council and an update on this next week would determine whether further 
action (referral to government, initiate recovery procedures etc.) was 
necessary. 

 

Audit and Standards Committee NOTED the report. 

 

85 Internal Audit Annual Report & Opinion 2020/21 

Rachel Ashley-Caunt, Head of Internal Audit introduced the report, the purpose of 

which was to provide Members with the opportunity to consider a report from the 

Head of the Council’s Internal Audit function on the performance of Internal Audit 

during the year and the ‘Internal Audit Opinion’ on the Council’s system of internal 

control and its arrangements for risk management and governance. 

 

Ms. Ashley-Caunt highlighted that Appendix A of the report detailed Internal Audit’s 

Annual Report.  Internal Audit had issued an overall opinion of satisfactory 

assurance and a summary this opinion was detailed at section 2 of Appendix A.  

The opinion reflected that there were no areas of major organisational risk but there 

were some areas for improvement and recommendations to improve controls had 

been made. 

 

Ms. Ashley-Caunt advised that the opinion was informed by the work of Internal 

Audit and the outcome of audit assignments.  Other sources of assurance were 

also considered (confirmation that the Council had valid public sector network 

compliance certification, which provided some assurance over IT security, 

consideration of the work undertaken on the Financial Management Code and self-

assessment, the materiality of findings and action taken by Senior Management 

Team to strengthen areas of weakness etc.) 

 

Ms. Ashley-Caunt highlighted: 

 

• Table 1 of Appendix A provided a summary of the audit opinions issued for 
2020/21 and this showed an improvement on previous years, with a reduced 
number of areas receiving limited assurance opinions and an increase in the 
number of substantial assurance opinions. 

• Much of the audit work delivered had been reported to the Committee during 
the year, as part of progress reporting.  This work and the audit opinions 
issued (including audit assignments completed since the last Committee 
meeting (on 9 March 2021) were detailed at Table 3 and Appendix 1. 

• The financial system key controls report was not finalised when drafting this 
report.  It had since been finalised and key findings would be reported to the 
Committee at its next meeting (on 28 September). 

• No major organisational risk had been identified during Internal Audit’s work.  
Moderate organisational risk was identified for 3 areas and all had action 
plans in place and would be monitored and the Committee updated on 

Page 4



5 Audit and Standards Committee : 270721 

 

progress made. 

• A review of the implementation of audit recommendations over the year was 
detailed at Table 4.  3 recommendations were overdue for implementation (1 
was medium priority and 2 were low priority). 

• Table 5 provided a summary of all overdue recommendations, including 
those from previous years as well as from 2020/21. 

• Internal Audit’s performance on delivery of the Audit Plan against Key 
Performance Indicators was detailed at section 4 of Appendix A. 

 

During discussion the following points were noted: 

 

• Members noted that performance reviews with the Cattle Market should be 
resumed and queried the position regarding the receipt of financial records 
or income information form the Cattle Market.  The Director for Corporate 
Services advised that an update would be sought from officers and 
circulated to Members outside this meeting. 

• Members referred to the Summary of Internal Audit Work 2020/21 as 
detailed at Appendix 1 of Appendix A, noting the basis for assurance opinion 
for the Housing Repairs audit assignment, particularly in relation to the 
impact of Covid-19 and lack of management continuity.  Internal Audit would 
monitor the implementation of recommendations and update the Committee 
on progress made.  

• The Director for Corporate Services and the Assistant Director for 
Governance and Democracy had worked with the Procurement Team to 
develop standard terms and conditions for contracts, improve the way 
decisions were made (decisions now recorded when contracts were 
awarded) and the Contracts Register was updated automatically in real time.  
The Contracts Register was available on the Council's website. 

 

Audit and Standards Committee received and NOTED the Internal Audit Annual 

Report and Assurance Opinion for 2020/21. 

 

86 Draft Annual Governance Statement and Local Code of Corporate 

Governance 

Kieran Stockley, Monitoring Officer introduced the report, the purpose of which was 

to seek approval of the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2020/21, 

which was a key component of the Council’s governance arrangements.  It was 

required to meet the statutory requirement for the Council to approve an AGS 

alongside its published Statement of Accounts (SoA) for 2020/21. The report also 

sought the Committee’s approval of the revised Local Code of Corporate 

Governance. 

 

Ms. Stockley advised that the AGS provided a continual review of the effectiveness 

of the Council's internal control and risk management system to give an assurance 

of its effectiveness and/or produce a management action plan to address any 

identified weaknesses.   It contained an update on the areas identified for 2020/21 

and identified areas for 2021/22. Due to a temporary change in the regulations on 

reporting deadlines for the draft unaudited AGS, a draft version was before 

Members.  This would be published alongside the draft Statement of Accounts and 

would be subject to a review by External Audit.  A final version of the AGS would be 

submitted to a future meeting of this Committee for approval, giving Members the 

Page 5



6 Audit and Standards Committee : 270721 

 

opportunity to provide comments before publication. 

 

Ms. Stockley highlighted the Local Code of Corporate Governance at Appendix B of 

the report.  This had been reviewed alongside the AGS to ensure its compliance 

with new CIPFA guidance on the impact of the pandemic on local government and 

the requirements of delivering good governance.  The format of the Local Code of 

Corporate Governance provided a streamlined approach and the Council had 

attempted to remove any unnecessary duplication. 

 

Audit and Standards Committee 

 

1) NOTED the Council’s draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS); 
 

2) APPROVED the revised Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 

 

87 Independent Review into the Oversight of Local Audit and the Transparency 

of Local Authority Financial Reporting ("The Redmond Review") 

Dawn Garton, Director for Corporate Services introduced the report, the purpose of 

which was to provide Members with a summary of the Redmond Review into the 

effectiveness of local audit and the transparency of local authority financial 

reporting, the recommendations made to the Government, along with the 

Government’s response and the potential implications for the Council. 

 

Mrs. Garton advised that links to the full independent review were provided within 

the report and an updated response from the Government was detailed at 

Appendix A of the report.  Appendix A also set out review recommendations, the 

Government's initial response and progress to date.  Whilst some 

recommendations had been agreed, others were still being considered and the 

Council awaited further guidance on these.  Paragraph 5.6 of the report detailed 

potential implications for the Council as a result of the review. 

 

Mrs. Garton confirmed that further consultation had been undertaken on the new 

burdens funding, due to the additional work created by the recommendations and 

also on the proposed changes to the audit fee variations. 

 

During discussion the following points were noted: 

 

• Members noted an additional £15m was allocated as part of the finance 
settlement for 2021/22, as detailed at paragraph 5.8 of the report. 

• There were a number of proposals on how Government would distribute the 
additional funding and concerns that small district councils may not receive 
significant shares of the funds but a timeframe for receipt of monies had not 
been provided. 

• Completion of the 2019/20 accounts remained outstanding with External 
Audit and it was anticipated that the draft 2020/21 accounts would complete 
Friday (30 July 2021). 

 

Audit and Standards Committee That Committee note the update on the Redmond 

Page 6



7 Audit and Standards Committee : 270721 

 

Review and potential implications for the 

Council. 

88 Urgent Business 

 

 

The meeting closed at: 7.15 pm 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Advice on Members’ Interests 

 
PERSONAL AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
If the issue being discussed affects you, your family or a close associate more than other 
people in the area, you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest.  You also have a 
personal  interest if the issue relates to an interest you must register under paragraph 9 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

You must state that you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest and the nature of 
your interest.  You may stay, take part and vote in the meeting. 
 

PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
If a member of the public, who knows all the relevant facts, would view your personal interest in 
the issue being discussed to be so great that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest and it affects your or the other person or bodies’ financial position or relates to any 
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration then you must state that you have a 
pecuniary interest, the nature of the interest and you must leave the room*.  You must not 
seek improperly to influence a decision on that matter unless you have previously obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Audit and Standards Committee.   
 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND OTHER INTERESTS 
If you are present at any meeting of the Council and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting, if the interest 
is not already registered, you must disclose the interest to the meeting.  You must not 
participate in the discussion or the vote and you must leave the room. 
 

You may not attend a meeting or stay in the room as either an Observer Councillor or *Ward 
Councillor or as a member of the public if you have a pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary 
interest*.   
 

BIAS  
If you have been involved in an issue in such a manner or to such an extent that the public are 
likely to perceive you to be biased in your judgement of the public interest (bias) then you 
should not take part in the decision-making process; you should leave the room.  You should 
state that your position in this matter prohibits you from taking part.  You may request 
permission of the Chair to address the meeting prior to leaving the room.  The Chair will need to 
assess whether you have a useful contribution to make or whether complying with this request 
would prejudice the proceedings.  A personal, pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary interest will 
take precedence over bias.  
 

In each case above, you should make your declaration at the beginning of the meeting or as 
soon as you are aware of the issue being discussed.* 
 

*There are some exceptions – please refer to paragraphs 3.12(2) and 3.12(3) of the Code of 
Conduct 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Audit and Standards Report 

Internal Audit Report 

1 

 

 

Audit and Standards 
28 September 2021 

Report of: Head of Internal Audit 

       

  
  

 

Internal Audit Progress Report 

Corporate Priority: All 

Relevant Ward Member(s): All 

Date of consultation with Ward 
Member(s): 

Not applicable 

Exempt Information: No 

1 Summary 

1.1 The report updates Members on progress made in delivering the 2021/22 Internal Audit 

Plan and key findings arising from audit assignments completed 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Committee: 

 

1.  Note the report and progress made by the Internal Audit team in the delivery of the Audit 
Plan. 

 

2 Reason for Recommendations 

2.1 To inform the committee on progress made by Internal Audit on plan delivery and outcome 

of assignments. 

3 Background 

3.1 The Audit and Standards Committee approved the Audit Plan for 2021/22 at the meeting 

in March 2021. 

4 Main Considerations 

4.1 The progress achieved to date in delivering the 2021/22 Audit Plan is set out in Appendix 

A.  At the time of reporting, 53% of planned assignments are either complete or in progress 

and two audit reports have been finalised.  

4.2 The key findings of the audit assignments completed to date are provided within Appendix 

A. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

http://www.melton.gov.uk/
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Audit and Standards Report 

Internal Audit Report 

2 

 

4.3 At the date of reporting, there are 16 agreed management actions which are overdue for 

implementation.  Further details are provided in Appendix A. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 Not applicable. 

6 Next Steps – Implementation and Communication 

6.1 The regular update reports from Internal Audit should allow the Committee to develop 

independent assurance about the quality of the Council’s internal control framework.   

7 Financial Implications 

7.1 There are no financial or other resource implications arising directly from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Director for Corporate Services 

8 Legal and Governance Implications 

8.1 Internal Audit is a statutory requirement as required under the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 which state “A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal 

audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 

processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance” 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Natasha Taylor (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 20.09.21 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 

9.1 There are no equalities or safeguarding implications arising directly from this report. 

10 Community Safety Implications 

10.1 There are no community safety implications arising directly from this report. 

11 Environmental and Climate Change Implications 

11.1 There are no environmental and climate change implications arising directly from this 

report. 

12 Other Implications (where significant) 

12.1 There are no other implications arising directly from this report. 

13 Risk & Mitigation 

13.1 The annual Internal Audit report forms part of the evidence that supports the Council’s 

Annual Governance Statement and provides assurance over the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s internal controls to manage the key risks and inform risk 

management arrangements. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Not applicable 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A: Internal Audit Update – September 2021 

Report Author: Rachel Ashley-Caunt, Head of Internal Audit 

Report Author Contact Details: 07824 537900 

RAshley-Caunt@rutland.gov.uk 

Page 12



Audit and Standards Report 

Internal Audit Report 

3 

 

Chief Officer Responsible: Dawn Garton, Director for Corporate Services 

Chief Officer Contact Details: 01664 502444 

DGarton@melton.gov.uk 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

MELTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 

SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 15

Appendix A



2 
 

Introduction 

1.1 The delegated internal audit service for Melton Borough Council has been commissioned to 

provide 235 audit days to deliver the 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan and undertake other work 

commissioned by the client. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards) require the Audit and Standards 

Committee to scrutinise the performance of the Internal Audit Team and to satisfy itself that 

it is receiving appropriate assurance about the controls put in place by management to 

address identified risks to the Council.  This report aims to provide the Committee with details 

on progress made in delivering planned work, the key findings of audit assignments completed 

since the last Committee meeting, updates on the implementation of actions arising from 

audit reports and an overview of the performance of the Consortium.  

Performance 

2.1 Will the Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 be delivered? 

 Internal Audit is set the objective of delivering at least 90% of the Internal Audit plans to draft 

report stage by the end of March 2022.   

At the time of reporting, 53% of the Audit Plan is either complete or in progress.   

Progress on individual assignments is shown in Appendix 1.   

2.2 Are audits being delivered to budget? 

 Internal Audit is on target to deliver the Audit Plan within the 235 days budget.  Any overruns 

on individual assignments are managed within the overall budget.   

2.3 Are clients satisfied with the quality of the Internal Audit assignments? 

 Responses received to the Customer Satisfaction Questionnaire are summarised in Appendix 

2. 

2.4 Is the Internal Audit team achieving the expected level of productivity? 

 As at the time of reporting, the team had been delivering 94% productivity, against the target 

set of 90%.   

2.5 Based upon recent Internal Audit work, are there any emerging issues that impact upon the 

Internal Audit opinion of the Council’s Control Framework? 

 At the time of reporting, the following audits from the 2021/22 audit plan have been finalised: 

 

 

 

Page 16



3 
 

Community grants 

The Council’s community grants fund aims to continue promoting and supporting local 
projects and services in an effective, local and community-led manner as an alternative to 
direct provision by the Council, by supporting sustainable projects and enabling organisations 
to benefit the Melton community.  The application window in relation to grant funding for this 
financial year closed on 16th December 2020, with total grant funding of £47.7k being made 
available to eligible applicants. 
 
The Council’s community grants policy is clear and concise, and is consistent with the Council’s 
corporate priorities.  The policy could be further enhanced by including matters in relation to 
the small grant application process, and more information in relation to the terms and 
conditions of grant funding, such as the recovery of misused or unused funds.  Management 
may also wish to include such information within the applicant declaration and / or the 
confirmation email which is currently issued to successful applicants. 
 
Appropriate officers are involved in the decision-making process, controls could be further 
enhanced by clearly defining roles and responsibilities, and some areas for improvement have 
been identified with regards to current record-keeping arrangements, in order to 
demonstrate that a consistent, fair and transparent decision-making process exists. 
 
Sample testing confirmed that grant fund applications had met the eligibility criteria as per 
the community grants policy, and all had been subject to Cabinet approval.  Pre-grant due 
diligence procedures will require strengthening to provide assurance that all recipients are 
solvent and deemed to be appropriate. 
 
A clear declaration is required for grant funding over £1k, to confirm that the applicant is 
suitably authorised; the information submitted is true and complete; and that the grant will 
only be used for the purposes specified.  Including such information on the small grant 
application form (under £1k) may further enhance control.  Internal Audit review confirmed 
that all grant funding had been paid via BACS into the correct bank account. 
 
Matters in relation to performance monitoring are clearly communicated within the policy, 
and whilst it is understood that informal discussions have taken place with one of the 
organisations included within the test sample, no such monitoring has taken place for the 
remaining four organisations, two of which have completed their projects at the time of 
reporting.  Whilst it is understood that no significant grant risks or issues have been raised 
during 2020/21 to date, sample testing has confirmed that key due diligence documentation 
/ information has been sought retrospectively. 
 
Based upon the findings, Internal Audit has given the following assurance opinions over the 
management of the associated risks:  
 

Assurance Opinion 

 Control environment Good   

Compliance  Safisfactory   

Organisational impact Minor 

 

Page 17



4 
 

 Procurement cards 
 

Procurement Cards are intended to provide an alternative route for purchasing lower value 
goods and services and providing greater flexibility on faster and easier methods of payment. 
The Council’s last audit on Procurement Cards was during 2015/16. At the time of the last 
audit, card use was restricted to eight cards and predominantly online purchases. Due to the 
Covid-19 pandemic, increased usage of procurement cards has been noted, given the increase 
in remote working, and the number of cards has increased to fifteen. 

 
The Council has guidance on procurement cards which is clear and comprehensive and 
includes controls for managing the risk of fraud and misuse.  Most cardholders have signed 
acceptance of the Council’s Code of Conduct, which clearly states that misuse can result in 
disciplinary procedures, and officers and directors are expected to monitor the value of card 
use through monthly review and approval processes. Whilst procedures are in place for 
correctly using cards and reviewing and approving purchases, there is no guidance in the event 
of a change in roles or a member of staff leaving the organisation. 

 
Expenditure on the cards is subject to appropriate evidencing of spend, and sample testing 
confirmed that spending was accurately recorded on transaction logs and included 
appropriate coding VAT and accounting codes. Each cardholder has the ability to review 
transactions on the cards by downloading the monthly statement from the card provider using 
a unique login and password and reviewing this with transaction logs before submission for 
payment.  

 
To date there is no analysis on procurement card spend carried out, which would assist in 
identifying unusual spending habits, or could assist in ensuring that the ordering and invoicing 
procedures are used where appropriate.  

 
Based upon the findings, Internal Audit has given the following assurance opinions over the 
management of the associated risks:  
 

Assurance Opinion 

 Control environment Substantial   

Compliance  Good   

Organisational impact Minor 

 
 

Members can request copies of all final Internal Audit reports from the Head of Internal Audit 

or Director for Corporate Services at any time. 

  

Page 18



5 
 

2.6 Are clients progressing audit recommendations with appropriate urgency? 

 Since the last committee meeting, five actions from audit reports have been completed by 

officers.  At the date of reporting, there are 16 agreed management actions which are overdue 

for implementation.  An analysis of the implementation of actions is provided in Appendix 3.  

There are four actions which were assessed as ‘High’ priority which have been overdue for 

more than three months – full details are provided in Appendix 4. 

Page 19



6 
 

Appendix 1: Progressing the Annual Internal Audit Plan 

 

Assignment Budget Actual 
Not 

Started 
Planning 

Field 

Work 

Underway 

Field 

Work 

Complete 

Draft 

Report 
Final Report 

Control 

Environment 
Compliance Org Impact Comment 

Corporate Governance & Counter Fraud   

Procurement compliance 
8 -           

Risk and performance 

framework 
10 -           

Covid 19 recovery 
14 -           

Local taxation fraud 
10 -           

Key Corporate Controls & Policies   

Key financial controls 
15 -           

Project management 
10 -         

Starters and leavers 
8            

Procurement cards 
8        Substantial Good Minor See para 2.5 

Asset management - 

leases 
8            

Corporate Objective: Shaping places 

KEY                                                                                              

Current status of assignments is shown by     

P
age 20



7 
 

Assignment Budget Actual 
Not 

Started 
Planning 

Field 

Work 

Underway 

Field 

Work 

Complete 

Draft 

Report 
Final Report 

Control 

Environment 
Compliance Org Impact Comment 

Land charges 
10            

Planning service review 
12 -           

Planning enforcement 
10 1           

Corporate Objective: Helping People 

Temporary 

accommodation 
12 -           

HRA business plan 
15 -           

Intensive housing 

management service 
10            

Community grants 
10        Good Satisfactory 

 

Minor See para 2.5 

Housing repairs 
10 -           

 

Assignment Budget Actual Comments 

Other Client Support 

Covid 19 support – governance and financial management 

assurances 

30 24  

Business grants / counter fraud support 12 9  

Advice & Assistance 3 2.5  

P
age 21



8 
 

Assignment Budget Actual Comments 

Other Client Support 

Contingency 5 -  

Committee Work, Support & Annual Report 15 8  

Recommendation Follow-Up 3 2.5  

Client Meetings, AGS/NFI & External Audit, Audit Planning 15 10  

Internal Audit Management & Development 21 17  

 

  P
age 22



9 
 

 

At the completion of each assignment the Auditor will report on the level of assurance that can be taken from the work undertaken and the findings of that 

work. The table below provides an explanation of the various assurance statements that Members can expect to receive. 

 

 

 

 

 

Compliance Assurances 

Level Control environment assurance Compliance assurance 

 

Substantial 

There are minimal control weaknesses that present very low risk 

to the control environment. 

The control environment has substantially operated as 

intended although some minor errors have been detected. 

Good 
There are minor control weaknesses that present low risk to the 

control environment. 

The control environment has largely operated as intended 

although some errors have been detected. 

Satisfactory 
There are some control weaknesses that present a medium risk to 

the control environment. 

The control environment has mainly operated as intended 

although errors have been detected. 

 

Limited 

There are significant control weaknesses that present a high risk 

to the control environment. 

The control environment has not operated as intended. 

Significant errors have been detected. 

No 
There are fundamental control weaknesses that present an 

unacceptable level of risk to the control environment. 

The control environment has fundamentally broken down 

and is open to significant error or abuse. 

P
age 23



10 
 

Organisational Impact 

Level Definition 

Major 
The weaknesses identified during the review have left the Council open to significant risk. If the risk materialises it would have 

a major impact upon the organisation as a whole. 

Moderate 
The weaknesses identified during the review have left the Council open to medium risk. If the risk materialises it would have a 

moderate impact upon the organisation as a whole. 

Minor 
The weaknesses identified during the review have left the Council open to low risk. This could have a minor impact on the 

organisation as a whole. 

 

Category of Recommendations 

The Auditor prioritises recommendations to give management an indication of their importance and how urgent it is that they be implemented. By 

implementing recommendations made managers can mitigate risks to the achievement of service objectives for the area(s) covered by the assignment. 

 

 

  

Priority Impact & Timescale 

High 
Action is imperative to ensure that the objectives for the area under review are 

met. 

Medium 
Requires actions to avoid exposure to significant risks in achieving objectives for 

the area. 

Low Action recommended to enhance control or improve operational efficiency. 

P
age 24



11 
 

Appendix 2: Customer Satisfaction 

At the completion of each assignment, the Auditor issues a Customer Satisfaction Questionnaire (CSQ) to each client with whom there was a significant 

engagement during the assignment. The Head of Service and the Line Manager receive a CSQ for all assignments within their areas of responsibility. The 

standard CSQ asks for the client’s opinion of four key aspects of the assignment. The responses received in the year to date are set out below. 

 

Aspects of Audit Assignments N/A Outstanding Good Satisfactory Poor 

Design of Assignment - 1 - - - 

Communication during Assignments - 1 - - - 

Quality of Reporting - - 1 - - 

Quality of Recommendations - - - 1 - 

Total - 2 1 1 - 

P
age 25



12 
 

Appendix 3: Implementation of Audit Recommendations 

  

 ‘High’ priority 

recommendations 

 ‘Medium’ priority 

recommendations 

‘Low’ priority  

recommendations 

Total 

  Number % of total Number % of total Number % of total Number % of total 

Actions due and 

implemented since 

last Committee 

meeting 

1 20% 3 33% 1 14% 5 24% 

Actions due within last 

3 months, but not 

implemented 

-  3 33% - - 3 14% 

Actions due between 

3 and 6 months ago, 

but not implemented 

2 40% 2 22% 1 14% 5 24% 

Actions due over 6 

months ago, but not 

implemented 

2 40% 1 12% 5 72% 8 38% 

          

Totals 5 100% 9 100% 7 100% 21 100% 

 

 

P
age 26



13 
 

Appendix 4:  ‘High’ Priority actions overdue for more than three months 

Audit Title and 

Year 

Service Area Issue / Outstanding Action Latest update and reason for 

revised implementation timescale  

Officer 

Responsible 

Original Date Revised Date 

Effectiveness of 

Case 

Management 

Arrangements 

2019-20 

Housing & 

Communities 

Prepare a formal service 

specification 

Prepare a formal service 

specification or plan setting out the 

overall aims and objectives of the 

IHM service, expected outcomes 

and detailed description of the 

services provided. This should 

clearly distinguish between welfare 

and tenancy based services and 

how they are delivered to 

maximise effectiveness and value 

for money. 

Management are aiming to 

commence the IHMS service review 

before the end of September through 

an external body/consultant. Once 

this has been completed an action 

plan will be compiled to satisfy the 

recommendations. 

Action Plan should be in place by end 

of October 2021. 

Internal Audit follow up work 

scheduled for later this year. 

 

Director of Housing 

& Communities 

30/11/2019 

 

31/10/2021 

Landlords Health 

& Safety 2019-20 

Housing & 

Communities 

Asbestos Surveys Northgate Asbestos module 

implemented and now live enabling all 

data and recommendations to be 

saved against the property. 

Director of Housing 

& Communities 

31/12/2019 

 

31/05/2021 

Rent arrears 

2020-21 

Housing & 

Communities 

Record and maintain profile 

information of Northgate Housing 

system users so that levels of 

access are clear and there is limited 

risk of wider access unnecessarily 

Due to recent restructuring, this 

action has been re-allocated to the 

Tenancy Services team.   

Reallocated to 

Tenancy Services 

  

P
age 27



14 
 

Audit Title and 

Year 

Service Area Issue / Outstanding Action Latest update and reason for 

revised implementation timescale  

Officer 

Responsible 

Original Date Revised Date 

being given to members of staff 

who do not require it for their role. 

Rent arrears 

2020-21 

Housing & 

Communities 

Conduct a review (with the 

assistance of Northgate if required) 

of current user profiles and user 

job roles and ensure appropriate 

access has been given for the role. 

Compile a list of system 

administrators who have access to 

create profiles for new users. 

Due to recent restructuring, this 

action has been re-allocated to the 

Tenancy Services team.   

Reallocated to 

Tenancy Services 

  

P
age 28



15 
 

Appendix 5: Limitations and Responsibilities 

Limitations inherent to the internal auditor’s work 

Internal Audit is undertaking a programme of work agreed by the council’s senior managers and 

approved by the Audit and Standards Committee subject to the limitations outlined below. 

Opinion 

Each audit assignment undertaken addresses the control objectives agreed with the relevant, 

responsible managers.  

There might be weaknesses in the system of internal control that Internal Audit are not aware of 

because they did not form part of the programme of work; were excluded from the scope of individual 

internal  assignments; or were not brought to Internal Audit’s attention. As a consequence, the Audit 

and Standards Committee should be aware that the Audit Opinion for each assignment might have 

differed if the scope of individual assignments was extended or other relevant matters were brought 

to Internal Audit’s attention. 

Internal control 

Internal control systems identified during audit assignments, no matter how well designed and 

operated, are affected by inherent limitations. These include the possibility of poor judgement in 

decision making; human error; control processes being deliberately circumvented by employees and 

others; management overriding controls; and unforeseeable circumstances. 

Future periods 

The assessment of each audit area is relevant to the time that the audit was completed in. In other 

words, it is a snapshot of the control environment at that time. This evaluation of effectiveness may 

not be relevant to future periods due to the risk that: 

• The design of controls may become inadequate because of changes in operating environment, 

law, regulatory requirements or other factors; or 

• The degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate. 

Responsibilities of management and internal auditors 

It is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk management; internal 

control and governance; and for the prevention or detection of irregularities and fraud. Internal audit 

work should not be seen as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the design and 

operation of these systems. 

Internal Audit endeavours to plan its work so that there is a reasonable expectation that significant 

control weaknesses will be detected. If weaknesses are detected additional work is undertaken to 

identify any consequent fraud or irregularities. However, Internal Audit procedures alone, even when 

carried out with due professional care, do not guarantee that fraud will be detected, and its work 

should not be relied upon to disclose all fraud or other irregularities that might exist. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Melton Borough 
Council
Annual Audit Letter for the year 
ended 31 March 2020

July 2021

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 5



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Page

Section 1 Executive Summary 3

Section 2 Purpose and Responsibilities 7

Section 3 Financial Statement Audit 10

Section 4 Value for Money 17

Section 5 Other Reporting Issues 21

Section 5 Focused on your future 24

Contents

Melton Borough Council 2

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited 
bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk).  

This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and 
audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and 
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors 
must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and 
statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the 
Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to 
any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be 
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual 
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 
More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all 
we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of 
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact 
our professional institute.

P
age 32

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 1

Executive Summary

Melton Borough Council 3

P
age 33



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

We are required to issue an annual audit letter to Melton Borough Council (the Council) following completion of our audit procedures for the year ended 31 March 
2020.  Covid-19 had an impact on a number of aspects of our 2019/20 audit. We set out these key impacts below. 

Melton Borough Council 4

Executive Summary

Area of impact Commentary

Impact on the delivery of the audit

► Changes to reporting timescales As a result of Covid-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 No. 
404, have been published and came into force on 30 April 2020. This announced a change to publication date for 
final, audited accounts from 31 July to 30 November 2020 for all relevant authorities.

Impact on our risk assessment

► Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property valuations, issued 
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude 
that there is a material uncertainty. Caveats around this material uncertainty have been included in the year-end 
valuation reports produced by the Council’s external valuer. We consider that the material uncertainties disclosed by 
the valuer gave rise to an additional risk relating to disclosures on the valuation of property, plant and equipment. 

► Disclosures on Going Concern Financial plans for 2020/21 and medium term financial plans will need revision for Covid-19. We considered the 
unpredictability of the current environment gave rise to a risk that the council would not appropriately disclose the 
key factors relating to going concern, underpinned by managements assessment with particular reference to Covid-
19 and the Council’s actual year end financial position and performance. 

► Events after the balance sheet date We identified an increased risk that further events after the balance sheet date concerning the current Covid-19 
pandemic will need to be disclosed. The amount of detail required in the disclosure needed to reflect the specific 
circumstances of the Council.

Impact on the scope of our audit

► Information Produced by the Entity (IPE) We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by 
the entity due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the 
Council’s systems. We undertook the following to address this risk:

• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE 
we audited; and

• Agree IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

► Consultation requirements Additional EY consultation requirements concerning the impact on auditor reports. The changes to audit risks and 
audit approach changed the level of work we needed to perform.

P
age 34



Ref: EY-000092651-01

The tables below set out the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.

Melton Borough Council 5

Area of Work Conclusion

► Financial statements Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 
31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended.

► Consistency of other information published with the 
financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Annual Accounts.

► Concluding on the Council’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 
resources. 

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:

► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest. 

► Written recommendations to the Council, which 
should be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report. 

► Other actions taken in relation to our responsibilities 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report. 

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Opinion on the Council’s:

P
age 35



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Melton Borough Council 6

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our 
review of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return (WGA). 

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500mn. Therefore, we did not perform any audit 
procedures on the consolidation pack.

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance of 
the Council communicating significant findings 
resulting from our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 25 February 2021.  We wrote to the Audit and Standards 
Committee on  30 July 2021 to communicate the outcome of matters identified as outstanding in the 
February Audit Results Report.

Issued a certificate that we have completed the audit in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit 
Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 30 July 2021 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work. 

Helen Henshaw
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

P
age 36



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 2

Purpose and 
Responsibilities

e
Responsibilities

P
age 37



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Purpose

Melton Borough Council 8

The Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising from 
our work, which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council. 

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2019/20 Audit Results Report to the 9 March 2021 Audit and Standards Committee, 
representing those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here are the most significant for the 
Council.

P
age 38



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Responsibilities

Melton Borough Council 9

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor

Our 2019/20 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the updated Audit Plan that we issued on 8 July 2020 and is conducted in accordance with the 
National Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2019/20 financial statements; and

► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

► Any significant matters that are in the public interest; 

► Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice. 

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The 
Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500mn. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the return.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the AGS, the Council 
reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period. 

The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

P
age 39



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 3

Financial Statement 
Audit

P
age 40



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Melton Borough Council 11

Key Issues

The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial 
management and financial health.

We audited the Council’s Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and 
other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 30 July 2021.

Our detailed findings were reported to the 9 March 2021 Audit and Standards Committee.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

Financial Statement Audit

Significant Risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material 
misstatements whether caused by fraud or error. As identified in 
auditing standard ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique 
position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to manipulate 
accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise 
appear to be operating effectively. We identify and respond to 
this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

Covid-19 Impact 
We consider there is a risk that expenditure relating to Covid-19 
could be incorrectly classified to attract additional government 
funding.

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material 
management override.

We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied.

We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which appeared unusual or outside 
the Council‘s normal course of business.

We have not identified any issues from our review of journals.

The Council has one Covid-19 cost centre that included expenditure of £18k, which is not 
material and as this is below our reporting threshold no additional work is required or  
completed.

P
age 41



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Melton Borough Council 12

Significant Risk Conclusion

Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition

Under auditing standards there is a presumed risk that revenue 
may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the 
public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that 
auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements 
may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition

As the Council is more focussed on its financial position over the 
medium term we do not consider there to be a heightened risk for 
the Council’s standard income and expenditure streams except 
for the capitalisation of expenditure on Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE) given the extent of the Council’s capital 
programme.

Covid-19 Impact: 
We consider there is a risk that expenditure relating to Covid-19 
could be incorrectly classified to attract additional government 
funding.

Our testing has not identified any material misstatements in relation to the incorrect 
capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

Overall our audit work did not identify any material issues or unusual transactions to indicate 
any misreporting of the Council’s financial position.

The Council has one Covid-19 cost centre for the year ended 31 March 2020 that included 
expenditure of £18k, which is not material and as this is below our reporting threshold no 
additional work is required or completed.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

P
age 42



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Melton Borough Council 13

Significant Risk Conclusion

Valuation of land and buildings

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment 
Properties represent significant balances in the Council’s 
accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment 
reviews and depreciation charges.  Management is required to 
make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation 
techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the 
balance sheet.

Covid-19 Impact:  
The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body 
setting the standards for property valuations, has issued 
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of 
Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude that there 
is a material uncertainty.

We engaged the support of our EY Real Estates (“EYRE”) specialists to review in detail a sample 
of the Council’s assets which had been revalued in the year.  

A number of issues arose as a result of our procedures, as set out below. 

Car park valuations:
The Council has a number of public car parks where the valuation is based on the income 
received. The Council provided the valuer with income figures for each car park, but these were 
gross rather than net (i.e. did not take into account the costs involved in running those car 
parks).  This resulted in the value of the car parks being overstated by £1.052m in the year 
ended 31 March 2020.  We also observed that in prior years the same erroneous approach had 
been taken.  Given the size of the overvaluation, management have recorded a prior period 
adjustment in the financial statements to correct the valuation of the carparks in the prior 
period.  The value of the adjustment was £1.194m at 31 March 2019.  

Cattle Market – Land value:
The Council’s valuer had used £82,500 pre acre to value the Land at the Cattle Market.  We 
consider that value per acre to be incredibly low and is significantly below even industrial land 
values in the area. We considered that the (relatively conservative) VOA industrial land value in 
Melton Mowbray of c. £182,000 per acre would be a more reasonable assumption.  Using the 
£182,000 per acre resulted in an uplift in the valuation of the land of £1.431m.  The Council 
have amended the financial statements to adjust this valuation.  The prior period valuation has 
not been amended because unlike the car parks difference noted above, this is considered to be 
a change in estimate as opposed to an error in the valuation.  Changes in estimate are reflected 
in the current year financial statements.

Cattle Market – Market Hall:
We compared the assumed build costs in the Council’s valuation with BCIS build costs.  This 
resulted in an undervaluation of £360k.  Management have not corrected this undervaluation in 
the financial statements.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

P
age 43



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Melton Borough Council 14

Significant Risk (continued) Conclusion (continued)

Valuation of land and buildings (continued)

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment 
Properties represent significant balances in the Council’s 
accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment 
reviews and depreciation charges.  Management is required to 
make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation 
techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the 
balance sheet.

Covid-19 Impact:  
The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body 
setting the standards for property valuations, has issued 
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of 
Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude that there 
is a material uncertainty.

Play area valuations:

We reviewed in detail the valuations of the following 4 assets:

Sunnybrook play area
Kirby Lane play area
Scalford Brook play area
Skate Park

The Skate Park was supportable. The calculations on the other three were not. We have 
calculated the individual valuation differences and then extrapolated that over the remaining 
play areas. This gave rise to a calculated (judgemental) overstatement in value of £222k.  
Management have not corrected this undervaluation in the financial statements.

Misclassification of assets as ‘Council Dwellings’:

We noted that there were several assets listed within the Council Dwellings category which were 
not in fact Council Dwellings.  These totalled £2.764m.  Management have adjusted the 2019-
20 financial statements to reclassify these assets correctly.  An amendment was not made to 
the prior year disclosures as this was not considered to be material to the reader of the financial 
statements as it was a balance sheet note reclassification only, with no impact on the primary 
statements.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

P
age 44



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Melton Borough Council 15

Other Key Findings Conclusion

Pension liability valuation The assumptions used by the actuary and adopted by the Council are considered to be generally 
acceptable. Our testing has not identified any material misstatements but the following matters have 
arisen:

McCloud

Last year, the government’s appeal in relation to the age discrimination present in public sector schemes 
was ruled against in the High Court. Consequently, some members  of  the pension  schemes  need  to  be  
compensated  with  higher benefits.  On 21 July 2020, a consultation document was released which 
provided further details on how benefits would be changed to remove the age discrimination.  
Management obtained revised actuarial reports to reflect the recent McCloud remedy consultation, which 
showed movement on the pension liability of £102k Since the amount is immaterial, it has not been 
adjusted in the financial statements.

Goodwin

Goodwin is another discrimination case, originating within the Teacher’s Pension scheme. Brought by Mrs 
Linda Goodwin (the Claimant), the ruling is that a widower or surviving male civil partner of the Claimant 
shall be entitled to the same pension as he would if he were a widow or surviving female civil partner of 
the Claimant. Management did not request that the Actuary re-run the liability calculations adjusting for 
the impact of the Goodwin ruling.  We calculated the impact to be an additional £108k past service cost. 
Since the amount is immaterial, it has not been adjusted in the financial statements, but will be picked up 
in the 20/21 valuation.

Going Concern In light of the global C-19 pandemic, Management have considered the additional cash flow and 
cost/income implications over the 12 months beyond the expected accounts approval date (i.e., out to 
July 2022). We note that the Council does not maintain a cash flow forecast projecting forward at least 12 
months. The council should put in place arrangements to ensure that it is maintained and monitored to 
ensure that it has sufficient resources to meet liabilities as they fall due and to demonstrate the 
appropriateness of the going concern basis of accounting when drawing up the financial statements. 
Based on our review of management’s assessment and consideration of cash/liquidity throughout the 
period to 31 July 2022 and the available reserves, we conclude that the going concern basis of 
accounting in the production of the 31 March 2020 financial statement is appropriate.

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

P
age 45



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Melton Borough Council 16

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the financial 
statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied

Planning materiality We determined planning materiality to be £543k (2019: £541k), which is 2% of gross revenue 
expenditure reported in the draft accounts of £27 million.

We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the principal considerations for stakeholders in 
assessing the financial performance of the Council.

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Audit and Standards Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit 
differences in excess of £27k (2019: £27k) 

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader. For these areas we 
developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified include:

► Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits;

► Related party transactions. 

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative 
considerations. 

P
age 46



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 4

Value for Money

P
age 47



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Melton Borough Council 18

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This 
is known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

► Take informed decisions;

► Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and

► Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper

arrangements for

securing value

for money

Informed

decision

making

Working with 

partners and 

third parties

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

We identified 2 significant risks in relation to these arrangements. The tables below present the 
findings of our work in response to the risks identified and any other significant weaknesses or 
issues to bring to your attention.

We have performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan. We did not identify any significant 
weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and 
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

On 16 April 2020 the National Audit Office published an update to auditor guidance in relation to 
the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment in the light of Covid-19. This clarified that in 
undertaking the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment auditors should consider NHS bodies’ 
response to Covid-19 only as far as it relates to the 2019-20 financial year; only where clear 
evidence comes to the auditor’s attention of a significant failure in arrangements as a result of 
Covid-19 during the financial year, would it be appropriate to recognise a significant risk in 
relation to the 2019-20 VFM arrangements conclusion. 

P
age 48



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Melton Borough Council 19

We therefore issued an unqualified value for money conclusion on 30 July 2021.

Significant Risk Conclusion

Compliance with Landlords’ Health and Safety 
Regulations

During the year an internal audit assignment was 
undertaken and a key finding of this audit was the 
historical weaknesses in data collection, retention, 
management and application in decision making 
process related to property safety.  The audit 
highlighted that historically the issues arising from fire 
risk assessments, electrical inspections and asbestos 
surveys have not been feeding into work plans. 
Therefore, where observations were recorded and 
recommendations made as a result of the inspections, 
these had not been suitably recorded and/or monitored 
to ensure the issues were promptly rectified.

The report notes that urgent action is required to 
address the risk of the negative impact on Council’s 
reputation, finances and more importantly the safety of 
tenants, visitors and Council staff.

We reviewed progress to date in management implementing the recommendations from internal audit and 
agreeing actions going forward. We are satisfied that the Council has procedures in place to respond to 
the matters raised in the internal audit report. 

Our review has not identified any significant matters that we wish to report to you.

Value for Money (cont’d)

P
age 49



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Melton Borough Council 20

Significant Risk Conclusion

Securing financial resilience

In common with many other local authorities, the Council is facing significant 
pressures in the medium term.  The Council is predicting a modest overspend 
for 2019/20, and forecasting deficits in the MTFS over future periods as 
follows:

• 2021/22 - £87k

• 2022/23 - £296k

• 2023/24 - £631k

Additionally, whilst the Council has been working to address the 
comparatively rapid use of reserves in recent years, CIPFA’s Financial 
Resilience Index reflects Melton as a higher risk in respect of the level and 
historic usage of reserves.

We have concluded that the Council  has adequate financial management 
arrangements in place, the financial challenges facing the Council are significant, 
particularly as it is operating within a financially challenged system together with the 
impact of Covid-19. The Council needs to ensure that financial assumptions are 
updated continuously to reflect the challenging environment. Our review of 
assumptions used in financial planning has not identified any significant matters that 
we wish to report to you.

Other observations Conclusion

Melton Southern Bypass

During the course of our work we were alerted to public difficulties with the 
relationship with Leicestershire County Council (LCC) in relation to the Melton 
Southern Bypass scheme. As a result we carried out additional work to 
investigate whether this gives rise to an additional significant risk to our VFM 
conclusion in respect of the criteria of informed decision making (specifically the 
consultation process which had been accused of lacking legality) and working 
effectively with others.

We reviewed documentation relating to interactions between the Council and 
LCC in respect of this matter.  We reviewed the legal advice obtained by 
management as to the adequacy, fairness, and legality of the consultation 
process; and we discussed  the matter with management including the Chief 
Executive, Director for Governance and Regulatory Services (Monitoring Officer) 
and Director for Growth and Regeneration.

We concluded that this did not create a significant risk to our Value for Money 
conclusion.

Value for Money (cont’d)

VFM update 

As part of our procedures, we have continued to evaluate the position of the 
council; part of the evaluation has included a review of the latest Medium Term 
Financial Strategy for 2021-22 to 2024-25, the following are forecasts 
extracted from the strategy:

• 2021/22 - £0k breakeven position

• 2022/23 - £847k surplus

• 2023/24 - £896k surplus

• 2024/25 £1,250k surplus

When considering our review of the council, we have not identified any events or 
transactions that would impact on the VFM conclusion reported in February 2021.

P
age 50



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 5

Other Reporting 
Issues

P
age 51



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Whole of Government Accounts

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500mn. Therefore, we were not required to perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

Annual Governance Statement

We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with the other information of 
which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.

We completed this work and identified a number of small minor areas where further disclosure was required to reflect the position at the Council. The Council 
amended the annual governance statement to include these areas.

Report in the Public Interest

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our attention in 
the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to consider it at a public 
meeting and to decide what action to take in response. 

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Other Reporting Issues

Melton Borough Council 22

P
age 52



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Objections Received

We did not receive any objections to the 2019/20 financial statements from members of the public. 

Other Powers and Duties

We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

Independence

We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Audit and Standards Committee on 9 March 2021. In our professional 
judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning regulatory and 
professional requirements. 

Control Themes and Observations

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. 
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in 
internal control identified during our audit. 

We have adopted a fully substantive audit approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls. 

The matters reported are shown below and are limited to those deficiencies that we identified during the audit and that we concluded are of sufficient importance to 
merit being reported.

Melton Borough Council 23

Description

Since 2018/19 the Council should have been able to demonstrate application of the expected credit loss model required by IFRS 9. We recommend that the Council 
address this issue

The Council has relied heavily on one member of staff in respect of the accounting for the Collection Fund, including the Bad Debt Provisions and Business Rates 
Appeals Provision. In the absence of that staff member during our audit, the Council were not able to respond adequately to our queries and request for support. 
The council should ensure that resources with expertise are in place to ensure that reliance is not placed solely on one individual for key accounting areas.

In our reporting of Going Concern, we identified that the Council does not maintain a cash flow forecast projecting forward at least 12 months. The council should 
put in place arrangements to ensure that it is maintained and monitored to ensure that it is sufficiently liquid that it can meet it’s obligations as they fall due.

We have highlighted over a number of years  in our reporting that the Council is not able to demonstrate that the percentages used in calculating its Bad Debt 
Provisions are consistent with its actual performance. Whilst this was addressed in respect of Council Tax and Business Rates in 2017/18, for other debts (sundry 
debtors and housing rents) the basis of calculation has not been substantiated. 

Other Reporting Issues (cont’d)

P
age 53



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 6

Focused on your 
future

P
age 54



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom introduces the application of new accounting standards in future years. The impact on the Council 
is summarised in the table below. 

25

Focused on your future

Standard Issue Impact

IFRS 16 Leases It was proposed that IFRS 16 (Leases) would be applicable for local authority 
accounts from the 2021/22 financial year, deferred a year due to the impact of 
Covid-19.
Whilst the definition of a lease remains similar to the current leasing standard; 
IAS 17, for local authorities who lease a large number of assets the new 
standard will have a significant impact, with nearly all current leases being 
included on the balance sheet. 
However in response to the ongoing pandemic and its pressures on council 
finance teams, the CIPFA LASAAC Local Authority Accounting Code Board has 
announced that the implementation of IFRS 16 in the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the UK (the Code) will be deferred until the 2022-23 
financial year. This decision brings the Code in line with the decision by the 
Government’s Financial Reporting Advisory Board to put back the effective date 
for the implementation of the standard to 1 April 2022.
CIPFA LASAAC has indicated that the deferral is limited to one year only and that 
there is no intention to grant any further extensions based on a lack of 
preparedness.
The announcement is available on CIPFA’s website.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard. The 
2021/22 Code includes an appendix on the future implementation of 
the IFRS 16 Leases standard which has been deferred for a further 
year. The appendix sets out the anticipated provisions in the 
2022/23 Code and it will allow local authority accounts preparers to 
make effective preparations for the implementation of the standard 
in the 2022/23 financial year. Note that early adoption of IFRS 16 is 
not permitted
What is clear is that the Council will need to undertake a detailed 
exercise to identify all of its leases and capture the relevant 
information for them. The Council must therefore ensure that all 
lease arrangements are fully documented.

Inset Client Name]

P
age 55



26

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction
and advisory services. The insights and quality
services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world
over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to
deliver on our promises to all of our stakeholders.
In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for
our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer
to one or more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young
Global Limited, each of which is a separate legal entity.
Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients.
For more information about our organization, please
visit ey.com.

© 2018 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000070901-01 (UK) 07/18. CSG London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its
impact on the environment, this document has
been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes
only and is not intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other 
professional advice. Please refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 56



 

 

Audit and Standards Report 

Draft annual Governance Statementle]1 

 

1 

 

 

Audit and Standards 
28 September 2021 

Report of: Director for Corporate Services 

       

  
  

 

Risk Management Annual Report 2021 

Corporate Priority: Ensuring the right conditions to support delivery 

Relevant Ward Member(s): All 

Date of consultation with Ward 
Member(s): 

N/A 

Exempt Information: No 

1 Summary 

1.1 This report provides an update on the risk management arrangements and outlines the 

current significant risks that have been captured on the recent review of the Council’s 

strategic risk register by the Senior Leadership Team. 

2 Recommendation 

             That Audit and Standards Committee; 

 

2.1 Note the content of the report and the updated Strategic Risk Register and 
associated risk management action plan, as attached at Appendix A. 

 

3 Reason for Recommendations 

3.1 Risk Management forms part of the Audit and Standards terms of reference who have 

formal responsibility for overseeing the Risk Management arrangements for the Council. It 

is important that members have awareness of the strategic risks that could impact on the 

Council and to review the risk management arrangements in place and the activities that 

are being undertaken to mitigate those risks.   

4 Background 

4.1 The Strategic Risk Register captures the current significant risks and outlines mitigating 

actions. Members of the Audit and Standards Committee last reviewed this in September 

2020.  

Page 57

Agenda Item 6

http://www.melton.gov.uk/
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Audit and Standards Report 

Draft annual Governance Statementle]isk Management Annual Report 
2021 

2 

 

4.2 Cabinet also have oversight of risk to ensure they have awareness of the strategic risks 

that could impact on the Council and to review the risk management arrangements in 

place and the activities that are being undertaken to mitigate those risks. Their last review 

was undertaken in March 2021. 

4.3 The council also maintains directorate risk registers to help manage those risks that are 

more service specific to support and manage service delivery.  These are reviewed by 

directors and managers regularly as well as the Senior Leadership team to help inform 

any discussions around risks that may need to be escalated to the strategic risk register. 

Risks will be monitored at both a directorate and corporate level and then may move on 

the scoring matrix or between the different risk registers depending on level of risk or 

concern at the time. However, it is recognised risks are dynamic and can change 

depending on the latest information and actions taken and therefore are kept under review 

and mitigation modified accordingly. 

4.4 Project risks are also managed through the council’s project management framework with 

risk registers maintained for high profile projects which are regularly reviewed through 

project teams and programme boards. 

5 Main Considerations 

5.1 The current Risk Management Policy and Strategy was approved by this Committee in 

September 2019. This was updated following the changes in the Council’s governance 

arrangements to ensure the Risk Management Policy and Strategy was aligned with the 

new governance framework.  

5.2 Officers have reviewed again to consider if any further changes are required but felt the 

current strategy is still fit for purpose for the Council’s future risk management 

requirements so no further updates are proposed. As the Policy was approved in 2019 the 

next formal review is due in 2022. 

5.3 The Strategic Risk Register has been recently reviewed and updated by Senior 

Management to capture the current significant risks and outline mitigating actions. 

5.4 A copy of the Strategic Risk Register is attached as Appendix A. This consists of a Risk 

Matrix which plots the risks being managed at this level along with the actual register itself 

which includes the current and target risk score, along with further details for each risk 

such as potential consequences, the controls in place and any action required. Members 

will note there are currently 13 risks being monitored at this level – 4 high risks, 6 medium 

risks and 3 green risks.   In summary these are: 

• Failure to Secure financial stability in the medium term 

• Future Provision of ICT services following end of current outsourced contract 

• Failure to deliver MMDR (in full or in part) and the financial and legal impacts on Melton 
Borough Council arising from any agreement with the County Council which seeks to 
support delivery. 

• Financial pressures undermining partnerships (integrated working) 

• Failure of a key supplier e.g. Housing Repairs, Waste and Leisure 

• Failure to maintain Governance Framework 

• Failure of the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 

• General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) compliance 

Page 58



Audit and Standards Report 

Draft annual Governance Statementle]isk Management Annual Report 
2021 

3 

 

• Council unable to manage impact of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on council services 

• Impact of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business and communities of Melton 

• Instability and diversion of focus away from the Corporate Strategy created by the 
Devolution and Local Government Reorganisation debate 

• ICT Security Breaches 

• Non compliant and inefficient housing options and homelessness prevention service 

5.5 Summarised in the table below are the main risks that we would like to draw members 

attention to, based on the current risk score, changes to previous scoring or new risks that 

have been identified: 

RISK RATING SCORE MITIGATING ACTION/CHANGE 

Failure to Secure 

financial stability in 

the medium term 

High 24 
 

Previous 
Score 
(24) 

 

➔ 

• Priorities agreed through Corporate 
Strategy 

• Maximising partnership working to 
deliver better outcomes at reduced 
costs 

• Regular review of Medium Term 
Financial Strategy and use of 
sensitivity analysis 

• Prioritise spending plans that will 
generate savings in return.  

• Continue to lobby government and 
other groups to ensure fair funding of 
Covid and ongoing funding.   

• Development of financial 
sustainability programme. 

Financial resilience remains a key risk to 
the authority which has been further 
stretched throughout the ongoing 
pandemic and highlighted in the recent 
review by the LGA. 
 

Impact of 

Coronavirus (Covid-

19) on the business 

and communities of 

Melton 

High 15 
 

Previous 
Score 
(15) 

 

➔ 

• Recovery structures in place to 
assess impacts and identify 
appropriate resources required.  

• The current budget proposals 
incorporate additional expenditure to 
support the town centre and enable 
development of a new, post-covid, 
Town Centre Strategy and 
masterplan,  

• Ongoing grants payment facilitation 
to support business diversification. 

• Continued involvement, leadership 
and engagement within the 
Leicestershire Reliance Forum and 
support to local partners and 
businesses as required. 
 

This risk first appeared at the start of the 
pandemic and is being closely 
monitored as part of the Councils 
ongoing response to the Covid crisis.  

Page 59



Audit and Standards Report 

Draft annual Governance Statementle]isk Management Annual Report 
2021 

4 

 

 

Non compliant and 

inefficient housing 

options and 

homelessness 

prevention service 

High 15 
 

New 
Risk 

• The current housing register system 
has been reopened with a view to   
clearing the application backlog 

• We have engaged with MHCLG to 
carry out an assessment of the 
service  

• A Review of housing allocations 
policy and consultation will be 
undertaken alongside the level of 
resources that might be required. 

• Options appraisal to be done in 
order to determine which IT systems 
can best meet the operational needs 
of the service linked to any new 
policy that is developed. 

 
This is a new risk which has been 
identified due to the current challenge in 
progressing the new housing register 
and Homelessness Reduction Act 
compliant IT platforms. Linked to the 
delays associated with Covid and an 
out-of-date allocations policy had led to 
a position where urgent actions need to 
be addressed. 
 

Failure of the Housing 

Revenue Account 

Business Plan  

 

High 16 
 

Previous 
Score 
(16) 

 

➔ 

• This is managed as a key corporate 
priority with appropriate levels of 
resources being allocated through 
the Housing Improvement Plan. 

• Regular monitoring of the Housing 
Improvement Plan for the 
compliance and quality of housing 
stock is managed through multiple 
governance structures such as 
board meetings, operational 
meetings which have senior 
leadership oversight. 

• Clear communication is undertaken 
with key stakeholders to ensure that 
progress is communicated regularly. 
 

This was a new, consolidated risk added 
in March 2021 to reflect the next phase of 
developing the HRA roadmap for 
improvement following on from the 
previous risk around the council housing 
stock not being compliant with property 
health and safety standards. Whilst 
further work to address long term legacy 
issue and housing quality is required, the 
council has addressed the significant 
risks regarding compliance within its 
housing stock and can now focus on the 
longer term stock condition and decent 

Page 60



Audit and Standards Report 

Draft annual Governance Statementle]isk Management Annual Report 
2021 

5 

 

homes improvement through the HRA 
business plan development. 

 

 

5.6 Since the last meeting the keys point to note from the table above and the risks attached 

are: 

• Covid has had a significant impact on the risk management arrangements of the 
Council with the continued high level risk being managed as outlined above focused on 
the community and business impact.  In addition to this there is a separate risk on the 
risk register relating to manging the impact on Council services which was seen as 
more of a medium risk when first identified. Over the past 6 months the council has 
been able to continue to deliver the majority of services and with the opening up of the 
country this risk has been reduced to a lower risk.  The financial impact of Covid has 
also contributed to the increase in the financial stability risk score due to the added 
funding pressures and future uncertainly. 

• A risk around non compliant and inefficient housing options and homelessness 
prevention service has been identified and added to the strategic risk register. This is 
due to the current challenge in progressing the new housing register (Choice Based 
Lettings) and Homelessness Reduction Act compliant IT platforms. The covid 
pandemic has contributed to the delays which must now be addressed to ensure 
sufficient focus and resources are identified to deliver the necessary actions required. 
This includes an up to date allocation policy following consultation and the associated 
system configuration to the new allocations policy. The council has also engaged the 
support of MCHLG with a review and assessment of the homelessness service. 

• There was a previous risk associated with the failure to have contractual provisions in 
place for goods, works and services procured by the Council which has now been 
moved to the service risk register for the Corporate Services Directorate to be 
managed at a lower level.  A number of actions have been implemented to address 
this risk including further training, guidance, the provision of standard terms and 
conditions, thus reducing the overall risk to the authority. 

• When the last review was undertaken a new risk was added regarding the running of a 
covid safe election.  This has since been removed due to the success of the election 
process including the due diligence undertaken by officers to ensure the May 2021 
elections were undertaken in safe and secure manner. 

• The other risk scores have remained the same as a number of actions are still being 
worked through and have a longer timeline for implementation of mitigating actions 

5.7 As referred to in para 4.3 the council also maintains directorate risk registers to help 

manage those risks that are more service specific to support and manage service delivery.  

Some of the directorate risks that are being managed within services for example are: 

• Delivery of the asset development programme 

• Council housing stock not being compliant with property health and safety standards 

• Addressing the climate change agenda  

• Resource levels within teams to deliver services 

• Delivery of key projects with directorates 

• Management of key contracts such as repairs and waste 

Page 61



Audit and Standards Report 

Draft annual Governance Statementle]isk Management Annual Report 
2021 

6 

 

• Fraud and corruption 

 

6 Options Considered 

6.1 An alternative option is that Audit and Standards do not review the Strategic Risk Register. 

This is not considered a viable alternative as it is essential that members have strategic 

oversight of the organisation. 

7 Consultation 

7.1 Cabinet have reviewed the updated strategic risk register at a recent briefing meeting. 

8 Next Steps – Implementation and Communication 

8.1 None – Senior Management will continue to monitor and update the Strategic Risk 

Register as appropriate and will report back to members later in the year with a further 

update. 

9 Financial Implications 

9.1 There are financial implications from poor Risk Management however, with robust 

procedures these should be minimised or eradicated. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Director for Corporate Services 

10 Legal and Governance Implications 

10.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 Part 2 Section 3A(c) require the Council to 

have in place a ‘sound system of internal control which includes effective arrangements for 

the management of risk’.  

10.2 Failure to adequately address legal issues arising from any activity of the Council 

increases risk. Officers endeavour to ensure Members are adequately advised and 

projects properly implemented to ensure that Legal requirements are met. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Natasha Taylor (Deputy Monitoring Officer 20.09.21) 

11 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 

11.1 There are no direct implications arising. 

12 Community Safety Implications 

12.1 There are no direct implications arising. 

13 Environmental and Climate Change Implications 

13.1 There are no direct implications arising. 

14 Other Implications (where significant) 

14.1 There are no other implications arising. 

15 Risk & Mitigation 

15.1 All risks are outlined in the risk register in Appendix A.  

16 Background Papers 

16.1 There are no specific background papers 

Page 62



Audit and Standards Report 

Draft annual Governance Statementle]isk Management Annual Report 
2021 

7 

 

17 Appendices 

17.1 Appendix A - Strategic Register September 2021 

 

Report Author: David Scott, Corporate Services Manager 

Report Author Contact Details: 01664 502448 

dscott@melton.gov.uk 

Chief Officer Responsible: Dawn Garton, Director for Corporate Services 

Chief Officer Contact Details: 01664 502444 

DGarton@melton.gov.uk 

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



6 1

5 4 10,13

4 2,5,8 7

3 6 3 12

2 9,11

1

1 2 3 4

Impact

Risk Ref
Current Risk

Rating
Target Risk

Rating

1 24 12

2 12 9

3 9 3

4 10 8

5 12 9

6 6 4

7 16 6

8 12 6

9 6 4

10 15 8

11 6 6

12 12 8

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Failure to secure financial stability in the medium term

Future Provision of ICT services following end of current 
outsourced contract

Risk Register

Risk Description

Failure of the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) compliance

Council unable to manage impact of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on 
council services

ICT Security Breaches

Failure to deliver MMDR (in full or in part) and the financial and 
legal impacts on Melton Borough Council arising from any 
agreement with the County Council which seeks to support Financial pressures undermining partnerships (integrated 
working)

Failure of a key supplier e.g. Housing Repairs, Waste and 
Leisure

Failure to maintain Governance Framework 

Impact of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business and 
communities of Melton

Instability and diversion of focus away from the Corporate 
Strategy created by the Devolution and Local Government 
Reorganisation debate

Page 65

Appendix A



Risk Ref
Current Risk

Rating
Target Risk

Rating
Risk Description

13 15 4
Non compliant and inefficient housing options and 
homelessness prevention service

Page 66



L
IK

E
L

I
H

O
O

D

IM
P

A
C

T

R
IS

K
 

R
A

T
IN

G

L
IK

E
L

I
H

O
O

D

IM
P

A
C

T

R
IS

K
 

R
A

T
IN

G

1
Failure to secure financial stability in 
the medium term

Government funding cuts.  Fair funding Review and review of 
business rates baseline originally due to be effective from 
2020/21 but timing now delayed and no timescale known. 
Impact of covid on business rates retained due to appeals 
and material change of circumstances claims. NHB to be 
phased out but unclear what growth incentivised funding will 
replace this.  Plan B due for a refresh and would be a last 
resort.    Partnership funding cuts.  Demographics (increased 
demand).  Cipfa financial resilience concerns primarily 
regarding the level and rate of depletion of reserves although 
these have stabilised. Need and desire to invest versus low 
level of capital receipts. Lack of asset condition information 
meaning capital strategy is not as well formed as it could be. 
HRA business plan is interim until stock condition surveys are 
complete.

Inability to achieve corporate 
objectives.  Savings having to be 
made that impact service delivery.  
Low staff morale and high staff 
turnover as workforce is reduced 
leading to capacity issues.  High cost 
services that fail to meet customer 
needs, demands and expectations.  
Poor customer satisfaction leading to 
high failure demand. Deterioration in 
asset conditions and no capital to 
invest in aspirations which could lead 
to increased income/reduced 
expenditure. 

 Priorities agreed through corporate strategy. Regular liaison and consultation 
with unions.  Workforce Strategy e.g. staff training and support.  Maximising 
partnership working to deliver better outcomes at reduced local cost.     Regular 
review of MTFS.  Well informed public and members around priorities, cost of 
services and resources available.  Regularly review risk associated with 
partnership projects and funding. Risk assessed working balance which takes 
into account potential fluctuations of income and expenditure levels against 
budget. MTFS is subject to sensitivity analysis.  Ongoing review of any changes 
in government funding.  Ongoing consideration to be given to public consultation 
to ensure the proposals are understood within  the context of the financial 
position. Regular liaison and lobbying of government and other groups to 
recognise the need for funding for Covid costs. Development of financial 
sustainability programme.

6 4 24

Further Savings options are identified as part of 
financial sustainability programme. Prioritise 
spending plans that will generate savings in return. 
Consider options for reducing failure demand e.g. 
prevention and demand reduction through service 
redesign.  Continue to lobby government and other 
groups to ensure fair funding of covid and ongoing 
funding.

4 3 12
Director for Corporate 
Services

Great Council Nov-21

2

Future Provision of ICT services 
following end of current outsourced 
contract

LICTP to be moved to an in house service and loss of one 
partner meaning service will need to be transitioned to new 
service precision. Risk that we cannot recruit right experience 
and skills.   Transition from current contractor is not amicable. 
Resources within the partnership to implement in a timely 
manner.  Increased demand for ICT services due to need for 
more increased remote working.

Poor IT operational service leading to 
service issues and poor customer 
service, failure to invest in  IT 
developments both strategic and 
operational leading to lack of service 
progress. Poor staff morale and 
frustration with IT provision. Failure of 
core systems resulting in loss of 
service. 

 IT programme manager with technical skills to liaise with contractor/client to 
ensure Melton's IT needs are meeting business needs in place. Use of external 
support and guidance to ensure any service transition is resourced sufficiently. 
Additional resources provided by partners to support the transition. Regular 
strategic review meetings to ensure partnership is aligned. Governance 
arrangements being reviewed to support the new service arrangements.

4 3 12

Project plan for the transition to be put in place and 
communicated.  Commence any discussions with IT 
supplier and transition to any new arrangement. 
New governance arrangements to be finalised and 
put in place.

3 3 9
Director for Corporate 
Services

Great Council Nov-21

3

Failure to deliver MMDR (in full or in 
part) and the financial and legal 
impacts on Melton Borough Council 
arising from any agreement with the 
County Council which seeks to 
support delivery.

Funding from DFT withdrawn e.g. by change in Government, 
LCC refuse to accept this grant or the Housing Infrastructure 
fund for the southern section. LCC refuse to forward fund the 
required infrastructure.  Failure to reach an agreement with 
the County Council for recovery of developer contributions.  
Developer contributions not realised. Judicial review and 
financial impacts on the Council arising as a consequence of 
any agreement entered into with the County Council.

Undermines the Melton Local Plan 
and broader growth aspirations. More 
pressure for Housing growth in rural 
areas.  Reputational impact. Legal 
Challenge and financial implications 
which affect services and the Council's 
sustainability through any agreement 
with the County Council. 

DfT has awarded £50m funding for the north and east sections and the business 
case to confirm the funding is due to be submitted by the County Council later in 
2021. The Council has agreed to work with the County Council in developing the 
Masterplan for the Northern section which is progressing. The County Council 
continue to work with Homes England to see if the Housing Infrastructure 
Funding can be secured for the southern section. Melton Borough Council 
continue to offer support to this process and negotiations are at an advanced 
stage with a view to reaching an agreement that would allow this to proceed. The 
County Council have indicated their intention to accept the HIF in September 
2021, subject to a number of conditions being met. The Council is now updating 
the masterplan for the southern section based on the new development layout 
approved in December 2020. A draft developer contributions SPD to support 
infrastructure investment has been developed and is now subject to statutory 
consultation. Over the last 5 years over 99% of developer contributions have 
been secured for Melton Borough Council for highways and education 
representing over £25m of investment. Planning permission has been granted for 
design and route of the MMDR and contracts awarded for its construction. 
Ongoing discussions with relevant developers as part of the master planning 
process.

3 3 9

1) Continue negotiations with the County Council 
and work towards an agreement on underwriting 
developer contributions to support LCC acceptance 
of the HIF. 2) Update the southern Masterplan 
based on the agreed development layout. 3) 
Following the statutory consultation, finalise and 
agree a Developer Contributions SPD prioritising 
education and highways contributions. 4) Continue 
to develop and approve the Masterplan for the 
northern neighbourhood. 

1 3 3 Chief Executive Place Dec-21

4
Financial pressures undermining 
partnerships (integrated working)

Reduced funding from partners.  Conflicting priorities between 
partners. 

With ongoing financial pressures it is 
difficult to achieve effective 
partnership working that can have a 
real impact on key issues such as 
crime, ASB, substance misuse, social 
mobility, inclusive growth and 
homelessness.

Maintaining relationships with senior leaders from other organisations.  Working 
through existing partnership structures. Take advantage of co-location and 
shared uses of buildings.

5 2 10

Further develop work of the People Board on 
outcomes framework in Covid 19 context. Work with 
local (Melton) partners to tackle this framework but 
also seek to work at the County level to influence 
key strategic partnerships. Overall focus should be 
on behaviour change and achievement of better 
outcomes. 

4 2 8
Director for Housing and 
Communities 

People Dec-21

5
Failure of a key supplier e.g. 
Housing Repairs, Waste and Leisure Supplier failure.  Bankrupt.

Failure to deliver service. Reputational 
damage.  Financial costs.  Capacity to 
deal with the implications.  Legal 
implications. 

Robust procurement.  Performance Bonds.  Regular monitoring of the key 
suppliers and contracts.

4 3 12

Ongoing robust monitoring of key 
suppliers/contracts. Internal audit consultancy 
assignment commissioned to monitor the contract 
implementation for housing repair contract.  Liaise 
with contractors for Covid impact and Brexit 
implications

3 3 9
Director for Housing and 
Communities 

People Dec-21

6
Failure to maintain Governance 
Framework 

Council does not meet statutory requirements, laws and 
regulations. Risks not considered and mitigated against. 
Decision makers not properly informed of material facts. 
Publication requirements not complied with.                            

Failure to comply with legislation. 
Fraud or corruption occurs. Failure to 
make safe and legal decisions. Lack of 
transparency and accountability.

A governance review by the LGA has indicated processes are robust. 
'Constitution regularly reviewed. Corporate resources reviewed regularly. Risk 
framework considered by members and SLT on a rolling basis. 'Project 
Management Toolkit refreshed and promoted.  Ongoing training on governance 
matters.  SLT held regularly with clear reports and accountability for leading the 
organisation. Performance indicators have been reviewed.   Performance, 
complaints and risk reviewed by Scrutiny, Cabinet and SLT. Corporate Strategy 
updated and comms plan in place. Professionally qualified statutory officers 
involved in decision making.  Master list of policies developed and regularly 
reviewed.  

3 2 6

Ongoing work to continue to implement LGA 
recommendations in respect of good governance. 
Risks will continue to be monitored and updated by 
Directorates.  Project Management training has 
been rolled out to the wider organisation.  
Continuing to develop the policy and performance 
framework.  

2 2 4

Director for Corporate 
Services 

Assistant Director for 
Governance & Democracy

Great Council Oct-21

7
Failure of the Housing Revenue 
Account Business Plan

Possible failure of the HRA BP include:  outdated or unfit 
business plan; lack of stock condition information; failure to 
deliver capital programmes; failure to meet Decent Homes 
Standard; failure of compliance in respect of Health and 
Safety; failure to collect income due; incorrect assumptions 
used in BP. 

Council being non compliant and 
failing in the duty as a landlord; 
tenants being exposed to safety risk; 
potential financial and reputational 
risks

Interim Business Plan in place with Housing Improvement Programme being 
delivered and managed through a Board with Leader and Portfolio Holder 
oversight; plan in place for stock condition surveys and tenant surveys in 21/22, 
with new BP in place wef April 2022.  

4 4 16

This is managed as a key corporate priority with 
appropriate levels of resources being allocated 
through the Housing Improvement Plan.
Regular monitoring of the Housing Improvement 
Plan for the compliance and quality of housing stock 
is managed through multiple governance structures 
such as board meetings, operational meetings 
which have senior leadership oversight.
Clear communication is undertaken with key 
stakeholders to ensure that progress is 
communicated regularly

2 3 6
Director for Housing and 
Communities 

People Nov-21

RISK OWNER RISK REVIEW DATEEXISTING CONTROLS IN PLACE TO MITIGATE THE RISK

Risk Register

REF

RISK TITLE & 
DESCRIPTION

(a line break - press alt & return - 
must be entered after the risk title)

CURRENT RISK 
RATING

(See next tab for 
guidance)

TARGET RISK 
RATING (6-12mths)

(See next tab for 
guidance)

FURTHER ACTION REQUIREDRISK VULNERABILITY AND CAUSE RISK CONSEQUENCES PRIORITY 

P
age 67



L
IK

E
L

I
H

O
O

D

IM
P

A
C

T

R
IS

K
 

R
A

T
IN

G

L
IK

E
L

I
H

O
O

D

IM
P

A
C

T

R
IS

K
 

R
A

T
IN

G

RISK OWNER RISK REVIEW DATEEXISTING CONTROLS IN PLACE TO MITIGATE THE RISK

Risk Register

REF

RISK TITLE & 
DESCRIPTION

(a line break - press alt & return - 
must be entered after the risk title)

CURRENT RISK 
RATING

(See next tab for 
guidance)

TARGET RISK 
RATING (6-12mths)

(See next tab for 
guidance)

FURTHER ACTION REQUIREDRISK VULNERABILITY AND CAUSE RISK CONSEQUENCES PRIORITY 

8
General Data Protection Regulation 
(GDPR) compliance

Failure to invest in the required systems, equipment and posts 
required to ensure compliance. Failure to adequately train 
staff in the requirements of the Regulations. Lack of resource 
(capacity and expertise) to ensure data is accurate, retained 
in line with retention periods, documented and maintained.

Non compliance with statutory 
requirements.

Policies have been updated, data protection guidance and training for 
staff/members undertaken on a rolling basis,  Data Protection Officer in place

4 3 12

Information Asset Register to be reviewed by 
managers on an annual basis, Information to be 
champions established. Look at resources to 
provide more support for the control of data and 
recording of data held.  Training to be provided to 
BSO's as a result of recent structural changes

2 3 6

Director for Corporate 
Services

Assistant Director for 
Governance & Democracy

Great Council Nov-21

9

Council unable to manage impact of 
Coronavirus (Covid-19) on council 
services

Lack of capacity to cope with the increase in community 
needs as well as business as usual tasks as a result of the 
virus. This will be caused by increased needs from the 
community as well as reduced staffing availability due to staff 
becoming ill themselves or needing to self isolate or being 
unable to work due to caring for others. Technology 
constraints may also limited the amount of work able to be 
undertaken remotely. Availability of workforce from 
contractors as well as council will have a negative impact on 
continuing the compliance related work. Risk of concurrent 
events e.g. Avian Flu, flooding, snow, placing further pressure 
on capacity

Work will need to be prioritised 
resulting in some services either being 
scaled back or not delivered at all. 
Delays to HIP projects and actions 
would lead to the Council being non-
compliant to property health and safety 
standards. Inability to deliver key 
aspirations within the Corporate 
Strategy

In March 2020 the Council declared a major incident and business continuity and 
emergency planning arrangements have been in place ever since. The Council 
ceased non-essential services and redirected resources to support priority 
services and established new community and business support infrastructure. 
Parkside is a Covid-secure workplace with social distancing and hygiene 
protocols in place and the majority of the workforce continue to work from home 
where possible. Whilst technology remains a challenge, the Council has 
demonstrated its ability to function effectively in these circumstance. Council 
representatives continue to be linked into multi agency discussions as part of the 
Leics Local Resilience Partnership (LRF) enabling council is up to date with latest 
advice and taking a consistent approach as partners. Mutual aid arrangements in 
place with district colleagues. Regular bulletins and guidance being provided to 
staff to protect their health and well being.  In year savings have been identified 
from non-priority areas, and alongside additional government funding, the 
immediate service delivery risk associated with funding has reduced. The Council 
has set a balanced budget for 2021/22 and retains a covid contingency budget to 
address and funding issues.

2 3 6

Regular,  meetings held to review impacts on 
staffing and critical services. Opportunity to 
redeploy resources if necessary and bring in 
additional support as required. Ongoing support 
provided to staff and utilise additional funding 
sources (e.g. Contain) to bring in additional 
resources in key areas e.g. business grant 
administration and economic development. 
Continue to ensure staff, members and the 
community are kept informed as the situation 
develops. Regular meetings of multi agency groups 
)Place Board and People Board) to ensure 
partnership opportunities maximised. Through the 
easing of restrictions the Council is developing a 
new hybrid model of working which it anticipates will 
launch in September

2 2 4 Chief Executive Great Council Dec-21

10

Impact of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on 
the business and communities of 
Melton

In the 11 months since the lockdown the economy has shrunk 
by 20%. Whilst the Furlough scheme  helped protect jobs in 
the short term unemployment has increased and the number 
of claimants for universal credit in Melton has doubled. Over 
the coming years there will be greater financial, physical and 
mental health challenges and greater pressure on housing. 
Whilst the Council has provided considerable support to 
businesses in Melton through government grant schemes 
there is a risk that some businesses do not survive. Further 
risk of local and national  lockdowns increase uncertainty and 
dent consumer confidence

Higher unemployment, greater 
dependency on welfare, impacts on 
physical and mental health, impacts on 
business survival rates, increased 
homelessness

The Council has established recovery structures to fully assess impacts and 
identify appropriate responses, including  'people' and 'place' scrutiny task and 
finish groups to inform proposals.   The Corporate Strategy has been reviewed to 
ensure it incorporates key recovery actions and was adopted in September 2020. 
As part of the budget setting process for 2021/22, proposals to divert additional 
resources to support economic development, town centre regeneration and 
business diversification were approved. The Council continues to work closely 
with partner agencies in the LRF to ensure response are co-ordinated and work 
to support our communities and businesses are joined up. The Council has 
developed a policy to support businesses through the Additional Restrictions 
Grant.

5 3 15

The current budget proposals incorporate additional 
expenditure to support the town centre and enable 
development of a new, post-covid, Town Centre 
Strategy and masterplan, as well as grants to 
support business diversification. These will be 
implemented subject to consideration by Council in 
February Continued involvement, leadership and 
engagement within the LRF and support to local 
partners and businesses as required. The Task and 
Finish Scrutiny Groups are reporting to Cabinet 
shortly

4 2 8 Chief Executive People Dec-21

11

Instability and diversion of focus 
away from the Corporate Strategy 
created by the Devolution and Local 
Government Reorganisation debate

It was anticipated that the government would publish a 
Devolution White Paper in September 2020. Due to the 
impact of coronavirus this has been delayed until later in 
2021.Whilst the exact contents remain unclear it was 
previously understood this will include some encouragement 
for areas to consider local government reorganisation. Whilst 
this may create opportunities which will need to be fully 
considered there may also be a risk that it consumes capacity 
and diverts focus away from the council's recently approved 
Corporate Strategy.

Diversion of focus/ diversion of 
capacity/ Inability to deliver priorities 
articulated in the Corporate Strategy/ 
instability within the organisation/ loss 
of key staff

The postponement of the Government White Paper has reduced the impact of 
this risk and enabled the focus to be maintained on pandemic response. The 
indications are that the focus is shifting away from reorganisation to levelling up 
and devolution. Regular dialogue between the Leaders and Chief Executives of 
Leicestershire district councils continues and work to establish a collective 
Leicestershire district position on devolution is underway. 

2 3 6

Review of the actual White Paper and consideration 
of best response for Melton people and 
communities once it is published. Continuing 
dialogue with other local councils and government 
as required. Proactive and regular internal 
communications to ensure any change in the 
position is understood

2 3 6 Chief Executive Great Council Dec-21

12
ICT Security Breaches

Data loss or inability to deliver systems and services from 
internal or external ICT Security breaches.  Internal breaches 
by employees may be malicious or accidental, either 
compromising data or systems by deliberate action or 
inaction.  External breaches are by Cyber actors deliberately 
attempting or breaching ICT perimeter controls, or by 
misleading staff to take action that compromises ICT security, 
to remove data, encrypt systems, extort monies, or disable 
the authorities ability to deliver its services

Data loss, loss of ability to deliver 
systems and services to employees 
and citizens, 

Perimeter Security, Systems and data is backed up, Annual IT Health checks, 
Cyber Essentials and PSN accreditation, Security Working Group, policies in 
place to support and advise staff, ICT monthly articles and newsletters aimed at 
increasing staff cyber awareness, Encryption detection software, Antivirus 
software, Mail Filtering, Sophos Unified Threat Manager, Intrusion detection 
software

3 4 12

Additional Cyber security appliances to reduce the 
likelihood of successful intrusion and unusual 
behaviour, Network Access Control to secure the 
network from unauthorised devices, Privilege 
Access Management to mitigate internal threats

2 4 8
Director for Corporate 
Services

Great Council Sep-21

P
age 68



L
IK

E
L

I
H

O
O

D

IM
P

A
C

T

R
IS

K
 

R
A

T
IN

G

L
IK

E
L

I
H

O
O

D

IM
P

A
C

T

R
IS

K
 

R
A

T
IN

G

RISK OWNER RISK REVIEW DATEEXISTING CONTROLS IN PLACE TO MITIGATE THE RISK

Risk Register

REF

RISK TITLE & 
DESCRIPTION

(a line break - press alt & return - 
must be entered after the risk title)

CURRENT RISK 
RATING

(See next tab for 
guidance)

TARGET RISK 
RATING (6-12mths)

(See next tab for 
guidance)

FURTHER ACTION REQUIREDRISK VULNERABILITY AND CAUSE RISK CONSEQUENCES PRIORITY 

13

Non compliant and inefficient 
housing options and homelessness 
prevention service

Current challenge in progressing  new housing register 
(Choice Based Lettings) and Homelessness Reduction Act 
compliant IT platforms. Allocations policy is now outdated and 
requires update, consultation and associated system 
configuration. A number of interdependent risks need to be 
managed as a wider piece of work to ensure progress and 
compliant service, policy, effective system development and 
efficient operations. Temporary pausing of applications due to 
Covi d 19 and system transition  to join the housing register  
must be addressed, delays due to Covid19 and system 
configuration challenges have led to a need to remove risk in 
this area o work.  Current absence of team leader / 
operational lead . Corporate support and oversight required. 

Statutory compliance, data integrity, 
service efficiency, staff morale, project 
delivery and costs 

Immediate action to: 
1. Reopen the current housing register system and clear application backlog
2. Engage MHCLG to carry out an assessment of the service 
3. Engage relevant team members to develop an improvement plan  

5 3 15

1. Review of housing allocations policy and 
consultation
2. Options appraisal to determine which IT systems 
can best meet the operational needs of the service 
alongside contractual and financial considerations
3. Map new policy against system configuration to 
assessment extent of changes required
4. Decision to be taken ref progressing a 
homelessness reduction act IT system / module 
5. Team Leader/ Strategic Lead recruitment to 
ensure sufficient operational expertise and capacity

2 2 4
Director for Housing & 
Communities 

Helping People Nov-21

14

P
age 69



Risk Matrix and Scoring Guide

Page 70


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Appendix A - Internal Audit Update, September 2021

	5 External Audit Annual Letter 2019/20
	6 Risk Management Annual Report 2021
	Appendix A - Strategic Register, September 2021


